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HERBERT BROWNELL, JR.

Herbert Brownell, Jr. was born in Peru, Nebraska on
February 20, 1904, Educated in schools 1n Nebraska, he
entered Yale Law School, receiving his legal degree in
1927. After a number of years in the practice of law,
he entered politics in New York State, ser;ing in the state
legisiature from 1933 to 1937. He managed Thomas E. Dewey's
campaign for Governor of New York in 1942 and his presiden-
tial campaigns in 1944 and 1948. He played a prominent
role in Dwight D. Eilsenhower's presidential campaign in
1952.

President Eilsenhower appolnted Brownell Attorney
Ceneral of the United States and he served from 1953 to
1958, In that capacity the President relied prinecipally on
Brownell in dealing with the Bricker Amendment challenge,
rather than relying on Secretary of State John Foster Dulles.
The reason for this was that Brownell had established
friendly relations wilth Ohio Senator John W, Bricker dating
back to 1944 when Bricker was the Republican vice presiden-
tial nominee and Browhell was campaign manager [or Governor
Dewey, who headed the ticket. Brownell and Bricker retailned
good personal relationsg throughout the Bricker Amendment
controversy which peaked in 1954,

Despite this personal relationship, efforts at a com-
promige soclution, desired by Eisenhower, came to naught

because Brownell, representing the viewpcint ol the federal



2
bureaucracy in the Justice Department and the State De-
partment, could never find a text for the proposed amend-
ment to the Constitufion which would satisfy the geals
of Senator Bricker and at the same time not have uninten-
ded effects which Brownell sought to avoid.

This interview concerns only Brownell's involvement
in the Bricker Amendment episode. It should be read in
conjunction with an interview with Senator Bricker, also
accessioned in the 0Oral History Collection at Youngstown
State University. Reading the two interviews will give
the views of the leading participant on each side of the
controversy, Hurther infermation about the Bricker Amend-
ment can be found in the introduction to the interview

with Senator Bricker,

Josenh May
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M: This 1s an interview with Hérbert Brownell for the
Youngstown State University Oral History Program by
Dr. Joseph May on November ¢, 1977.

Tn fact, that was one of the things that I wanted to
ask you about. They have a restriction that if you
are to quote or cite from this, you need written
permission. And. there is one particularly good thing
you say, in there, that is very quotable about the
importance of the issue. I particularly would lilke
to quote that 1f it would be all right with you.

B: Well, I checked that over yesterday and it is all right
with me to do 1it.

M: Okay, fine. Well, then, if I could get a letter to
that effect, because they require 1t in writing.

Mr. Brownell, you were right in the middle of the thick
of the thing from the beginning to the end. There's so
many questions I can ask you but we only have a limifted
amount of time, T realize. T have three or four areas
T thought I would concentrate on. Just to give you an
outline of the whole interview, the first one would be
the area of the Knowland Substitute, how 1t came about.
Then second, I'd like to agk you some things about the
negotiations with the Bricker forces 1n December and
January of 1953-1954. Then, there's some questions that
I'd like to ask about the emergence of the George Sub-
stitute, with what happened in that respect. And, then,
if we have time, I'd like to find out why the negotiations
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M.

M:

in 1955 broke down. T have a good deal of the corres-
pondence on that.

We'll have to refer to my records as you ask the questions
so I'1l get it in the right chronological order.(Laughter)

And then 1f we have time, there's a question about the
Status of Forces Agreement that I would like to ask.

The problem of reaching an agreement, within fthe admin-
istration on that. So that is the general direction T
would like to go. So the first area here on the Knowland
Substitute. You had meetings with the Republican Policy
Committee in the summer of 1953 and. . . Well, backing
up, in April, when you were testiflying before the hear-
ings, and summer, of course, several things happened,
one of which was: the Judiciary Committee came out with
this revised Which clause version.

Oh yes.

And another thing that happened T gathered was that it
seemed lilke the support for the Bricker Amendment was
beginning to build up. Now, was the idea for the
Knowland Substitute purely an idea toc head off the
passage of the more seriocus Which clause version? Did

it come, one hundred percent out of the desire to pre-
vent this, or did President Eisenhower genulnely feel
that he wanted. . .in other words, where did the pressure
for the Knowland Substifute come from?

Well, as I recall it, the Bricker forces were pretty
well convinced that the President would not go along
on their original draft and so that they maintained
that, in the original language, it would not get
through the Senate that the President had enough back-
ing to defeat it. That was fhe malin reascn that an
attempt was made to modify the language--try and get
something that would be acceptable to the President.
Then there was also a feeling among the Republican
Senators that they must support John Bricker who was
personally very popular and had fought hard for this
for several years, He carried some of The senators
with him on a perscnal basis. So I think the XKnowland
Substitute was probably for a combination of reasons,
both of those reasons.

So, in part, it was a need to keep the party ftogether?
Yes.

For fear of splitting the party at this crucial time
when the President's program was before the Congress.
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B: Yes, it was really the first test of the President's
strength in foreign affairs as to whether or not he
could keep the party on an internationalist course,
which 1s the reason he ran in the first place, and it
was a fest with the group in the Senate that was really
nationalistic or isolatlonlst or whatever you want to
call 1it.

M: One of the things T found out that was very interesting--
and T got this from Senator Bricker himself . . . Oh,
by the way, I'm sorry, I didn't answer the guestion
you asked earlier. T am working on a book on this,
hoping. to have a. full manuscript just on the Bricker
Amendment and the controversy.

B: It needed to be done. I'm glad you're doing it.

M: Yes. OSenator Bricker is giving me access to hils papers

and several interviews and I have. gseen the materials

in the Eisenhower Library. The Department of Justice
papers have been made available to me now and many other
sources which I've collected on this. One of the sur-
prises that came out and Senator Bricker was the first
one to broach it to me--~was that in those [irst six
months in 1953, Senator Taft the majority leader, was
working to delay the Bricker Amendment. Bricker was
surprised to find this out and T got from several other
sources that Taft, behind the scenes, though verbally
giving support, very mild support in public, was working
to delay the thing on the floor.

B: T think that's correct.

M: And I was wondering if you recall how that was worked
out. Was that worked out from the Pregident and Taft or
did you speak to Taft?

B: No, I didn't. I think that Talft genuinely wanted to
support the President as much as possible and that he
did so in this case. When did he die?

M: Oh, he died in, I believe it. was around June in 1953,
June or July in 1953, somewhere in there because Knowland
was taking over his duties as early as during May.

B: Well, I know that Knowland was asked somehow by the
administration to introduce the Substitute. He didn't
write it or compose it himself. It was composed over
in the administration, but I haven't gotten the connecting
link of how this was done. Do you recall if you. asked
Knowland to do i1t or if this was done through the White
House Staffl?
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I think 1t was done by a group of Senators, Senator
Ferguson and Senator Knowland. They wanted to prevent
a split between Eisenhower.and Bricker. for partisan
reasons T suppose, largely, and they genuinely felt,
as did Senator Bricker, that something had to be done
along these lines restricting the treaty-making powers
of the President and they wanted to accomplish that

if they could without a split in the party.

And Senator Knowland, probably feeling that he had to
represent the administration's point of view and
probably knowing that Senator Taft's.

That's right, he was ftrying to get a compromise on
language.

Because I think at the beginning, he probably was for
the Bricker Amendment the same as anybedy else, the
other group, the people around Bricker, I don't think
there was probably any difference or distinction, so his
thinking had to change as he got into it too,

That's true.

But, he didn't consult with Bricker on this. This is
the thing, because, not even a day before the Substitute
was introduced, Bricker didn't know anything about it.

I think that's correct.

And Bricker just took it as simply an administration
ploy, a diversionary tactle, I think is what he called
it.

Well, T think it was a group of Senators that really
originated that, rather than the administration.

Oh, that early?
Yes.
Well, now that is a néw angle. (Laughter)

I, of course, can't prove it but I think I would have
known about it if 1t was an administration move.

You don't think 1t came oﬁt of Phleger's committee to
coordinate the response of the agencies to the Bricker
Amendment that was headed by Phleger at the White House?

I'm not sure thatithéy got active that soon.
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M: They got active early, as early as March of that year
and they had about five or six meetings right on through.

B: It's concelivable that they consulted with Knowland
and Ferguson on that. If so, I didn't know about it
at the time.

M: Well, one of the things that the Bricker people say is
that the administration adopted a conscious strategy of
delay. And, I'm not sure--I want to get your reaction
on this. I can see where they would think this, that
when you go into these conferences--going into the
second area of my question~-your conferences in December
and January, there were so many of them, I'm Jjust
beginning to get them untangled, what was discussed at
each one.

B: That's December of 19539
M: Right, and January.

B: Well, I think undoubtedly that everybody on the adminis-
tration side hoped that they could delay it and put it
over, at least for another year, that it would die out.
I think the delay probably was the first.

M: So, you would say there was a delibérate strategy of
delay?

B: To prevent a vote, yes.

M: To prevent a vote. Well, this is the way They regarded
it,

B: I think that's what Taft was trying to do,

M: Yes. There was a very colorful phrase that Chuck Webb,
who was Senator Bricker's assistant.,had in one of his
private letters. In describlng this later, he said that
they were "Negotiations in the Panmunjom style."
(Laughter)

B: That had developed later I think. T think undoubfedly
that it was true. I think Senator Bricker fthought tThat
this would be probably the first important pilece of
legislation, call it legislation, or the first important
product of the Congress in the Eisenhower administration.
As I remember. 1t, it wag Resolution Number One. It was
signed by a very large number of senators who were . co-
sponsoring it. And I think, when Eisenhower was elected,
they Jjust assumed that this would breeze through. It
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could easgily have come to a quick vofe in the Senate
and if it had, 1t probably would have passed. So that
I'm sure that there was an effort to delay it until
the full implications of it could be explained and
public opinion aroused and public debate started, Bar
Associations, and the law schools and things of that
sort.

I get from several sources here, that President Eisen-
hower's position was a little bit different even from
the Cabinet and certainly the State Department and
Jugtice Department perscnnel below you. I gather that
he really did want a compromise agreement,

Oh yes. It was very much on his mind. He realized
that if fthere was a split within the party right at

that particular ftime. . . Ag I recall it, the . . . yes,
I think I'm right in saying that a split at that time
in the party on forelign affairs would have been very
serious and that he'd.like fo get thils behind him be-
cause his . . . 1t could he done properly, so that he
could get con to things that were more on his mind.

Yes, right. Did you feel, that in a way sometimes he
was leaning on the Justice and State Departments to try
to come up with something that

Oh yes.
Really leaning, "We've got to get this . . .?
Time affter time he told me to get 1t out of the way.

Well, one source sald that Eisenhower came into the
room at one of these meetings and one of the groups was
there and he said, "Now, you stay here until you come
up with something." (Laughter) Or words to that effect.

He felt that it was holding up action on hig legisla-
tive program and until he got it out of the way, he
wasn't going to get action on a number of other important
matters that he thought were, well, more important. He
thought, I think, that this was a dispute over language
that could be settled without compromlsing on principle
and that it was really a quarrel of lawyers over language.

And he always thought that right on through didn't he,

to a certain extent, because I know that he would

never. . . . If you convinced him that this would cut down
on.executive authority~-~any given draft that was being
studied at the time--would cut down on executive authority,
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I know he was determinéd'he'WOuld not allow that to
happen.

B: That's right.

M: So I suppose, In a way, Phleger and Ranken and some of the
others who were fighting this [the Bricker Amendmenﬁ] in
the bureaucracy below had. their work cut out for them.

If they could convince the President that any given
phrase and so forth, cut. down on executive authority,
then they had blocked the President from giving public
support. '

B: T think that's right, that's a good analysis.

M: Well. fine, becausé évéry draft that was put up to him,
i1t seemed like there was always some way that this could
be interpreted which it would be.

B: That's true. You ask a layman to read over the Fourteenth
Amendment and how can he possibly get all the implications
that are invloved there unless he knowsthe Supreme Court
dectsions over the period of one hundred years that in-
terpret it and he wouldn't get the slightest idea of some
of the implications by reading the language. And that was
at the heart of the Bricker debate. You'd lock at some
language and it sounded fine but then when you realliy dug
into it and applied the cases to it, you find out that it
did decrease executive authority to the point where you
almost went back to the old Confederation days, before the
Constitution was adopted, where we didn't have any power
in the Presidency to deal with foreign affairs.

M: Well, at the end of January--this is one of the crucial,
January and February is the really ﬁgucial part of the
whole thing--~EFisenhower appeared to getting very frustrated.
The 1nability of arriving at any kind of satisfactory
compromise and he was a little peeved at Bricker because
Bricker wouldn't accept something he thought he should be
able to accept. And so he began working on a nation-wide
television address and that thing went through eleven
drafts. T've got copileg of each of the eleven drafts.
(Laughter) You probably worked on it yourself,

B: Could be. My assistants did, anyway.

M: Yes. And the President must have spent hours and hours
working on those drafts getting it right for a nation-wide
television address. And he was talking in private about
the Which Clause,“now“mind.you;_if.the‘Whibh'claUseppasses,
he was going to give Dulles a leave of absence as the
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Secretary of State so he can go and testify before the
state legislatures to defeat the thing. And then,
right at the end, he's getting ready to do this, right
at the end, the whole thing gets shelved and he doesn't
make the address at all and. I don't have any hard facts
on why that television address was shelved. T have
some theories but, do you have any facts?

No.
(Laughter)

My theory would be, my theory would be that he found out
he didn't need to give it, that it was going to be
defeated.

Well, that's one theory. Now, there's this theory.
Knowland had been pressing TKE {President Eisenhoweﬁj

to come out with the position. ~gather Knowland wanted
to take any kind of position for his guidance, that
Eisenhower was just kind of close~mouthed on this. He
felt like he was walking in a mine field. And so Ike
wrote Knowland this famous letter, January 25, 1954:

"I am unalterably opposed to the Bricker Amendment as
reported by the Senate Judiciary Committee." Now, I
found out yesterday--in research at Columbia University--
Knowland said he was under the impression that he was
authorized to release that letter., However, T have also
come across correspondence Irom Eisenhower to you, saying,
"Did I authorize him? I don't recall saying anything
about it." I don't know if you recall that memo from
Eisenhower or not?

No.

I think it said, "Did I say anything stupid this morning
that might give him the impregsion that I auvthorized him
to release the letter?" T have his memo to you but T
don't have any reply that you gent. So, whether the
letter was really authorized, Eisenhower wasn't under the
impression that 1t was authorigzed.

I don't recall that incidéﬂt.

Well, he was surprised it was released,

Yes, yes.

And he said he wouldn't'bave.uséd Bricker's name if he

had known 1t was going to be released. Sc, you don't
recall how that thing got out? Well, all right.
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B: No, I don't.

M Then Knowland kept pressing him for a statement of
support for one of these other new compromises, the
Leadership cCompromise and the George Substitute. I've
got very interesting correspondence, another letter
from Knowland. Two drafts of the letter went out to
Eisenhower. One of them said, "The Leadershiv agree-

ment 1s all right. I won't object to i1t." The other
dralt was the exact opposite saying that "No draft
should be accepted without more prolonged study." Two

inconsistent letters from the President. And, what
happened was, he didn't sign either one of them. Now,
what I was wondering was, if you could shed any light
on how it was that Eisenhower backed off from making
any further statement on this because he was being
pressed in all directions to make a further commitment
one way or the other.

B: When?

M: Right after the beginning of February, right when the
George Amendment came up.

B: Well, T can see why the Presgident didn't sign either one.
I don't actually remember the incident but he was being
pressed by some of the senators, like Senator George, to
stay out of the fight all together.

U Well, yes, that's what George wanted to do, kind of
benevolent neutrality. I gather Knowland thought that
Eisenhower had agreed not to fight the George Amendment.

B: Well, I'm sure that there was great vressure on Eisenhower
not to fight the Georpge Amendment. They took the tack
there that essentially it didn't involve the treaty
power and that it wasg a matfter of the Senate to decide.
The President felt that he wasn't a part of the process
of submitting constitutional amendments. And the Pres-
ident obviously didn't want to get into an unnecessary
fight with Senator George. I would think that that was
the reason that he didn't make any unnecegsary statements.
He tried to limif his personal participation in the thing
as much as possible and Jet Dulles, myself and others
carry the fight against the amendment.

M: S0 he didn't object to you fighting the GeOrgé Amendment?

B: No, no. SenatOP.Georgéfdid. (Laughtér) He had the
famous pregs conference.
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M:

That "queer attornéy_general” statement. (Laughter)

Because I had no business mixing in the Senate consid-
erations of Constitutional Amendments.

I'd wondered if George said that, because he felt a
1ittile bit--the word is, I don't want toc use an emo-
tionally loaded word but it's the only one that comes
to mind--double-crossed here. But, Xnowland says,
"there was a misunderstanding" in later years. He
sald in an inferview that "there obviously was a misg-
understanding." I was under the impression that the
President would not come out against this and based
upon that, T got Senator Bricker to drop the Which
clause and accept the leadership thing.  And I checked
the votes on it and he did. Bricker and the Bricker
forces abandoned the Which clause. Of course, he might
as well, it would have been beaten anyway.

Yes, yes. By that time.

By that time. So, now, T was put in this terribly
embarrasing situation .of saying to Bricker, "If you

drop the Which clause, and go over to the George Amendment,
the administration won't oppose it." And then what
happens?. Elsenhower says, or indicates in some way--
although he wouldn't sign that letter that would have

made it publlic--Eigsenhcower. indicated fo them, or they
thought he indicated to fhem that he was goling to stay

out of it.

Well, that should account for Senator George's statement.

Yes. And then what happens:: all the full lobbying
elTort of the White Housge hits Capltol Hill to defeat
the Gecrge Amendment.

Yes. Well, that sounds like a very logical explanation

to me because I never knew that Knowland did that. I
imagine Senator George thought in effect, "What's going on
here? I'm getting two stories."” That isn't the way it
came out. I think the way 1t came out was that the
Journalists had devised it te have a good story. but
Senator George and I always get alcong very well.

Oh you mean that "queer attorney general' statement?

Yes, yes. I think he probably meant it. I think your
analysis is probably right. He thought it was a queer
thing that Senator Xnowland would come to him and

purporting to represent the administration's viewpoint
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and then I'd come to him with the opposite, purporting
fo represent the administration's viewpoint. I think
that's probably the correct analysis of why he made
that statement.

But the whole White House 1lobbying effort did go into
it at the last minute to defeat. . . And by the way,
it was successful. Bub it also was the reason why
Knowland said he decided, in view of the thing--he
voted "No" on the George Amerndment the first time it
came up--and that's why, where he made hig famous
speech 'going back to the back of the Senate and said,
"I'm voting as a.Senator! and switched and voted in
favor of 1t because he fTelt he owed  CGeorge something.

Well, throughout, there was a lot of Senatorial politics
involved, a matter of prestiege. To the Senators it

was almost as Important as what the Constitutional
Amendment said. I felt that that was always a factor.
They say that Senator Bricker was so well liked that a
lot of senators kind of hated. to vote against him.

They felt they were sort of letting him down because he
had dramatized this issue for over a pericd of months.

Well, I got to like him myself.

Oh, yes.

He was so kind and courteaﬁs and courtly. (Laughter)
Really a fine man.

He certainly 1s. Well, that was the end of it for all
practical purposes but you didn't know it at the time.

It came up again a ccuple years later.

It came up again in 1955 and 1956.

There never was any real steam in it after that.

No, thére wasn't. But you did have conferences with some
ABA [American Bar Associatioﬁ} leaders. Lloyd Wright was
one who came by.

Frank Holman,

And Frank Holman. Do you recall anything in particular
in those later meetings as to why the negotiations broke

down. They thought they had worked out something with you
too at one time?
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B: Yes. Well, there were a series of meetings but they
were language problems more than anythlng else because
the danger of anything really passing, in fact had
evaporated so 1 viewed negotiations in sort of an unreal
atmosphere. Edgar Eisenhower was with Frank Holman
and Lloyd Wright. The President was very respectful
of the American Bar Associlation, in fact that's one
thing he never did qguite understand. 'They took the
position in favor of the Bricker Amendment. Others
were pointing out to him that legally and constitution-
ally it was a bad thing and he never could understand
how that happened but. he instructed me to make every
effort to try and come to an agreement with the American
Bar Association group. Some how substitute for the
group a workable and satisfactory representative's
point of ¥iew. So, while we had many meetings, one
time we thought we had some language which really was
only a statement that, "No treaty in vioclation to the
Constitution would be wvalid."

M: The o0ld Section One?

B: It would be unconstitutional, yes. Some of the
American Bar Association group wanted to take that. We
thought for a while that Senator Bricker did. And it
was quite a reasonable possibility at that time. Section
One of the amendment would. have been sponsored by Senator
Bricker and passed. But he finally came to the conclusion
that that was an empty gesture that didn't really accom-
plish anything.

M: Well, you think it was because of the split within the
Bricker forces, the split within the ABA itseclf, whether
fto accept a half loaf or not, that killed that?

B: Yes, T do.

M: That was the impression that T . . . that if they had
been willing to accept a half loaf at that point, even
in 1955 or even maybe perhaps as late as 1956. They
could have gotfen the Bricker Amendment.

B: Yes, that is true in my opinion.

M: After 1956, 1657 I doﬁbt. By 1957 it was probably already
too late.

B: 1855 or 1956 around in there.

M: Because the prosnectlve votes on the thing were still up
to fifty-nine, sixty senators in favor.
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B: Yes.
M: Even that late in thé game.
B: Yes.

M Well, T wanted to ask you one question. One of the big
issues in the whole Bricker amendment thing was the
fight over the Status of Forces Treaty and of course,
the Justice Department was involved in the Status of
Forces controversy as it was coming up. Some things
I've run across kind of indicate to me there was some
difficulty within the administration trying to work out
a common administration position on what the Status of
Forces position of the administration should be. 1Is
there anything that you recall that would shed light on
that?

B: T doubt if that is so. The Pregident took the position
very early, so stated in a Cabinet meeting, that he
favored this and he wanted everybody to favor it. It
was a very important issue so far as he was concerned,
that 1t was an administration measure and that he wanted
it passed. And I don't recall any difference in opinion
within the administration about it. The President's
leadership on that was very forceful., There was no
organized opposition in the Congress that was serious.
And flor all those reasons it went through rather
smoothly. There was some extremist opposition to it.
There were some countries where, under their Judicial
system, they'd cut off their arms or thelr legs or
something of that sort. But it really was an extremist
position. But except for that type of opposition, it
really went very smoothly.

M: Yes, the Bricker Reservation was defeated handsomely in
May of 1953. {Actually, July, 1953| Even some of the
senators who later voted for the Bricker Amendment, voted
against the Reservation. But I came across some interest-
ing correspondence to the effect that, 1n the Defense
Department, some of the lawyers over there said, "Now
wait a minute, maybe we are giving away tco much because
under previous precedents, we did have complete criminal
jurisdiction on troops and now under this agreement
which is coming up we are agreeing to turn over .gome
jurisdiction that in the past we haven't had to do."

B:  Yes. I think you're COrréct on that--but 1t was brushed
aside. If never gailned any significant support even
within the administration.
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M: That was within the Delense Department?
B: Yes.

M: The Defense Department didn't adopt the position
offiecially?

B: No, they did not. GQuite the contrary.
M That cléars that up.

B: I don't think there would have been any opposition to
the Status of Forces Agreement if it hadn't been that
the. Bricker Amendment controversy was very hot at that
ftime. T can see that the Bricker forces might have
used that as another way of calling attention to the
Importance cof the Bricker Amendment. Except for that,
1t had smooth salling for it and it was something that
the President had his heart set on. He was really
determined on that. He initiated that, whereas the
Bricker Amendment was already in the. works and people
had all taken sideg before he was ever inaugurated, so
that's one of the things that made i1t so hard Tor him
to handle. It wasn't somefthing that he had initiated
as part of his administration proegram. It was a fight
that everybody had taken sides on before he was Iin-
augurated.

M: One little thing that may not. be as important as some
things we've discussed in here: In looking through the
Justice Department papers, I was very much interested
in seeing the correspondence that you had with Walter
White of the NAACP which he was writing the senators to
get their position he was passing along information to
you, If occurred to me when I was looking at that, that
that was a very effective way of mobllizing some lobbies,
mobilizing a segment of public opinion, and really, when
you come down to it, that's what defeated the thing.

B: Well, that's the way T felt, that that was our best
chance of defeating 1t and we used the New York City Bar
Association and groups of that kind.

M: I know Phlegér, in the State Départment, stayed almogt in
constant touch with The Committee to Defend the Consti-
tution.

B: Yés.

M: And coordinated theléfforts and so forth.



BROWNELL i5

M:

That's trué.

I wondered, with Phleger and some administration people
working so closely with the group that was out to
defeat 1t, if Eisenhower knew that much about what was
going on down there, or if.he was peeved because he was
trying to get an amendment, trying to get something
satisfactory, a satisfactory compromise. Tn this group
however, no amendment at all, no compromise, whatsoever.
You were better off, without anything,

Yes of course we were. (Laughter) Well, I think you may
have a point there. T know the President felt that a
weakness in having. the State Department represent him

in this fight because first the Dulles speech he made in
Louisville during the campaign which led the Bricker
forces to think that he would support them throughout

and perhaps intransigent opposgition to any Bricker Amend-
ment whereas he did want a. compromise, get it out of the
way. That's why I think he got the Justice Department

more into the negotiations with the American Bar Associa-
tion.

Well, in retrospect, would you say there was a difference
in say, Fisenhower's personal position and your personal
position? . Now, of course, I know you loyally supported
him. There's complete. evidence of that, but your own
personal outlook-on the thing really was closer to no
amendment at all, than his was.

Yes, that is correct. We carried on the negotiations at
his directions trying to get a satisfactory compromise.

We would have been very happy to have it voted down and

get it over wlth.

But you did make a good faith effort to try to follow
the President's directions in that respect.

Yes, we did. We exploréd every angle we could think of
to get a compromise,

And, as far as you know, Eisenhower did not perceive that
any of his own people were working against what. he was
trying to do? -

I think the answer to that probably is, that he felt we
were a better negotiating team working for a compromise
fhan the State Department was.

I see.
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B:  So that, to that extent you might say that he felt that
if there was any chance for a compromise at all, which
he wanted, that we could do it for him.

M: Yes, I know if Bricker walked. into any of these confer-
ences and if Phleger was there, he just would say this
Isn't serious at all.

B: Yes,.

M: But, when hé walkéd in wifth you--you both have such
high regards for each other.

B: We really tried.

M: Bricker has -spoken highly of you to me and this is really
interesting. He couldn't stand Dulles though.

B: I think he thought that Dulles had . really let him down
because I think he thought that Loulsville speech was a
speech in favor of the Bricker Amendment.

M: You mentioned the Louisville speech, I suppose pages of
ink have been writfen about that Louisville Speech.
(Laughter). When you come right down to it, wasn't
Dulles playing politics there? Wasn't it a campaign
address in 1952? How much did he really belleve what he
was saying about

B: Well, at that time, the central effort was to be on good
terms with everybody in the Republican party regardless
of who was going To be nominated. He didn't know whether
Taft was going to be nominated or Eisenhower was going
to be nominated, and he was being asked by both sides to
write a platform on foreign affairs which could be adopted
without a big floor fight. His whole effort at that
time was to smecoth over the controversy within the party,
s0 that there wouldn't be a big row at the convention.

M: ©So, he wrote a speech in which he spoke on both sides
of the issue. Knowingly he was speaking on both sides
of the issue, trying not to contradict himself, but
actually ending up deoing 1t.

B: Yes, I think that's a good explanation of it, and it was
very frultful. (Laughter) . You have to give him credit
for it because he did avoid--not that one speech, but his
whole effort--did :aveid a big row at the 1953 convention
between the Eisenhower forces and the Taft forces over a
matter that was very important to Eisenhower. He would
have turned down the nomination if there had been an
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B:

isolationist behind it. The Republican platform
because that's the only reason he would run for
president, was to prevent the party from taking an
isolationist point of view in foreign affairs. That's
the thing, I'm convinced, that caused him to run in
the first place and he was certainly very strong with
me at all points that if there wag an isolationist
kind of platform but to count him out, even if you had
to say it after he was nominated, he would have turned
down the. nomination. He thought that was his mission,
otherwisgse there was no point in his running for
president, he had all the honors there were. So, Dulles
deserves a lot of credit, I think, for presenting a
platform that could be accepted on all sides. And of
course, all it. did was further the fight until the
Bricker Amendment came along, and that was the first
real test. There were other tests too like Bohlen.

Oh yes.

The Bohlen Confirmation, things of that sort. The party
wag split, there wag no blinking that.

Well, as T recall the Bochlen thing, Taft went to the
wire with the president. We got.that one through. He
said to Dulles afterwards, "Now, don't ever do that
again." (Laughter)

I think that's right. I think fhat's right. Yes. When
people who lived through the Bricker Controversy veflect,
he was smart. And I think he would have accomplished
what the President wanted to accomplish and that was to
get it out of the way and get on with the legislative
progranm. '

I don't think Taft could have fecllowed the same strategy
in 1954 as he did in 1953, In 1953, he was delaying it,
but in 1954, they had too many supporters. They would
have had to bring it to the floor.

Is there anything that you feel that is not on the public
record—--becanse T have looked over the publie records
from beginning to the end--anything that may not be in
the public record that you feel should be a part of the
history of the Bricker Amendment?

Well, that is really a good question, I think, The only
way I could angwer it, I think, 1s to repeat more-or-less
what I sald before, and that is the feeling on the part
of' the President. that the State Department, which
ordinarily would have carried the load completely out of
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there at this time, had to be supplemented in order

to have this peint of view fully represented and
getting it up to a satisfactory compromise. I think
that probably some people on both sides have felt that
the President had a compromise which was weak because 1t
wag weak from their standpoint. They knew what they
wanted. I think the President was of the mind, .
there were two groups that were involved here. One was
the group that was iscolationist and really wanted to

cut down the powers of the Presidency and the Federal
Government in this area. If they didn't do it, there
were going to be more treaties that really were inter-
nationalist in their point of view, that the Federal
Government would bring more and more subjiects into
foreign affairs, economic, labor and soclal problems-—-
of course, events have proved them to be right in that
respect because many of those issues that one hundred
years ago were considered completely domestic, have now
become international problems. The different agencies
in the United Nations have shown that. It was that very
sincere feeling that ran through the Republican Party and
the Bricker Amendment supporters that this was the time
to stop that sort of thing. It was a real 1sclationist
movement, a bona fide one and a sincere one.

M: Bricker makes an interesting distinetion in his correspon-
dence, I suppose he did it publicly too, he saild, he's
not an isolationist, he's a nationalist. There's a
difference. (Laughter)

B: Well, it's a distinction without a difference really,
when you come right down to it, but I think he did
believe that. T think I remember him making that same
point, but T think it was a political distinction because
"{solationist" 1s a little tainted but "natlonalist" was
a good word but really, in essence, they came down to the
same thing.

Now that group, the president wanted to oppose but he
felt that there was another proup in back of the Bricker
Amendment which led him to think that there was a chance
for a compromise. That other group, largely speaking,
would be the peqgple who were still mad at ¥.D.R. ranklin
Delano Roosevelt] because of what he did at Yalta or
things of that sort, and that some demonstration should
be made to show that we were going to be natlionalists,

we were going to stand up to Russia and we were going to
eliminate any traces of Communist philosophy in our own
government. The Bricker Amendment was used more-or-less
ags a standard around which people who felt that way could
rally. That group did not consciously want to take away
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from’thé'President's leadership in foreign affairs.
That was the reason that the President, T fhink, felt
that there was a possibility of compromise.

The second group, it was kind of* an emotional reaction
against the New Deal or something of that sort. The
Republicans were now in power. We were going Lo show
them that we were different, and a philosophy of that
kind, but 1t was not a carefully thought out position.
When. that group came to realize what the consequences
were, of passing the Bricker Amendment, they dropped
away from it. That, I think, i1s the real way to analyze
this thing. and to understand the motives of the President
and to understand the decrease in support for the
Bricker Amendment.

M: There's one little memo that President Eisenhower wrote
to you in 1955 I believe 1t was, saying--T don't know
if you recall this or not, I get this from the Eisenhower
papers--it says, "There is a reason I. want the Bricker
Amendment that we haven't discussed before and that is,
I'm afraid that 1f I am succeeded by a politically weak
administration, they might succeed in putting through an
amendment that would be very, very bad indeed."

B: Yes. I do remember that and I know he did feel that way,
and I think he had a reason to feel that way. One of
the reasons he could easily come to that conclusion was
that people didn't understand the significance of 1it.

It was perfectly obvious that we should adopt the Bricker
Amendment. It was a little late when you studied it but
you found out why you couldn't and still keep a strong
federal government in forelign affairs.

M: There is, even among mocderates and liberals today, a new
slight shift of opinion beginning in the 1970's, the
standard liberal opinion on the Bricker Amendment was
just against i1t, defeated by 1soclationists and so forth.
But, I think the Vietnam War soured so many.

B: You're absolutely right.

M: That it's coloring perceptions on things all across the
board. And I wrote Fulbright just out of curiosity,
Fulbright was one of those who stood against the Bricker
Amendment, and I said, "What is you're position today?

Would you vote for the Bricker Amendment 1if it came up

again today?" And I went through 1t section by section.
"Well, section one is no longer needed, that's obsclete.
Section two is obsolete. What about section three:

Congress has the right to regulate all executlve agreements?
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M:

How do you feel about that today?" And he wrote back
with a very interesting letfer. A three page letter 1in
which he said that today he'd favor it.

That deoesn't surprise me.. I think almost any variation
of the George Amendment certainly and maybe even the
Bricker Amendment could have paszsed in Congress a
couple of years ago at the end of the Vietnam War. The
fact that Javits passed that legislation that very
drastically restricted the power of the President to
introduce armed forces into any other country, shows
that the George Amendment would have passed in a breeze
at the end of the Vietham War. So these things go in
cycles. I think that the reason it would have passed a
couple of years age was that the sentiment was that we
would have another Vietnam War unless the Congress
clipped the wings of the President.

Well, Fulbright said that he didn't impute any greater
wisdom to the Congress than to. the President but that

on matters of Importance, where we are at relations to
the rest of the world, he thought. it was important that
both should arrive at an independent position, that the
country was safer when both took a stand and that's why

he would have Congress regulate, in some way, executive
agreements.

Well, I think, myself that's wrong. I think that unless
the President has the power to make executive agreements
il there is a way of working with Congress, because
Congress has gof the power. of the purse and so forth.

I think. that if the President doesn't have the power to
make executive agreements, initiate treaties, then we're
right back where we were under the old Articles of
Confederation. That's what they thought then, and it
didn't work, and that's the reason we have the Constitu-
tion which gave these powers to the executive and I
think that Javits' legislation 1s a great mistake and if
it ever comes to a point where it will come to the front
and be really tested, why any strong executive ig going
to disregard 1t...You cannot operate foreign affairs
within a commitfee rule, if you are going to have con-
gregsional rules. We tried i1t in our early days and it
didn't work.

Well, of course, some people think that what will
happen 1s that in a way this might even strengthen the
President more because when you have an-emergency
situation and the Pregident goes to Congress and says,
"I need authorization,” he's almost bound to get it,

if the country is aroused sufficiently. With that kind
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of authorization why, you don't need such resolutions
like "Gulf of Tonkin", you have it built in there.

B: I don't happen to agréé‘with that.

M: Of course, it hasn't been tested yet. The way they
think it willl actually work out, it won't do what the
proponent's of the legislation think it will do. It
won't really serve as any kind of check because the
President 1s the one that has to make these decisions.

B: I think that's right. One way or another he'll do it.
In fact, if he has to defy it, he'll do it in the name
of emergency. He'll be supported. It is unrealistic.
S50, when you say that the Bricker Amendment and the
George Amendment might have been. adopted, at the end of
The Vietnam War, I think they would still hesitate to
put Them into the constitution but I think it was a
brave effort to demonstrate Congressional strength, as
you point out, it will not, when the showdown comes, be
very effective.

M: Well, I don't want to také'anymoré of your time. Thank
you very much,

END OF INTERVIEW
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'HERBERT BROWNELL, JR.

Herbert Browneil, Jr. was .born in.Pefu, Nebraska on
February 20, 1904.. Educated in schools in Mebraska, he
entered Yale Laﬁ School, reoeiﬁing his.legal degree in
1927. After a number of years in the practice of law,
he éntered politics in Wew York Staté, ser;ing ih the state
1egi$1ature from 1933 to 1937. .He managed.Thomas E. Déwéy's
campaign for Governor of New York in 1942 and his presiden-
tial campaigns in'lghﬂ and 1948. He piayed a.prominent
role in Dwight D. Eisenhower's presidential camnaign in
1952.

President Eisenhower appgintéd Browhe}}_ﬁttorney
General-éf the United States ;nd he served-from 1653 to
1958, In that capacity the President relied princinally on
Brownell 1in dealing with the Bricker Amendment challenge,
rather than relying on Secretary of'Staﬁe John Toster Dulles.
The reason for this was that Brownell had established
friendly relations with Ohié Senator John w; Rricker dating
back_to)19ﬂu when Bricker.was_the Republicén vice presiden-
-tial nomiﬁee and Brownell was campaign.manager for Governor
Dewey; whé héaded the ticket. Brownell and Bricker retalined
" good personal relations throughout the Bricker Amendment
controversy which peaked in 1951,

Despite this personal relationship, efforts at a com-
promise solution, desired by Eisenhower, came to naught

because Brownell, representing the viewpoint of the federal
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bureaucracy in the Justice Department énq the State De-
partment, could never find a text for the.proposed amend—
ment.to the Constitutioﬁ which Would satiéfy_the goalé
of Senator Bricker and at the same time not have uninten-
ded effects which Brownell sought to avoid. |
| This intérview concerns onily Browhell's involveﬁent
in the Bricker Amendment episode. Tt should be read in
~conjunction with an intérview with Senator Bricker, also
accessioned in thé Cral Historj Collectioh_at Younﬁstown
State University. Reading the two interviews wi}l give
the Vieﬁs of the leading participant on each side of the
contfoversy. Further information about the Bricker Ameﬁd»
ment can be found in the intrdduction to thé §nterview

with Senator Bricker.

Joseph May
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M: This is an interview with Herbért Brownell for the
Youngstown State University Oral Hlstorv Program by
Dr. Joseph May on Novembér 9, 1977. '

In'fact, that was one of the things that I wanted fo
ask you about. They have a restriction that 1f you
are to guote or cite from this, you need written
permission. And there is one particularly good thing
you say, in there, that is very quotable about the
imporfance of the issue., I particularly would like
to quote that if it would be all right with you.

B: Well, I checked ‘that over yesterday and it is all rlght
with me to deo 1%.

M: Okay, fine. Well, then, if I could get a letter to
that effect, because they require it in writing.

Mr. Brownell, vou were right in the middle of the thick
of the thing from the beginning to the end. There's so
many questions I can ask you but we only have a limited
amount of time, T realize. 1 have three or four areas
I thought I would concentrate on. Just to give you an
outline of the whole interview, the first one would be
the area of the ¥Xnowland Substitute, how it came about.
Then second, 1'd like %o ask you some things about the
negotiatlons with the Bricker forces in December and
January of 1953-1954, Then, there's some questions that
I'd 1like to ask about the emergence of the George Sub-
stitute, with what happened in that respect. And, then,
if we have time, I'd like to find out why the negotiations
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M:

M:

M:

- in 1955 broke down. I have a good deal of the corﬁes—

pondencé on that,

We'll have to refer to my records as you ask the questions
so I'11 get 1t in the rlﬂht chronological order.(Laughter)

And then 1f we have time, there's a question about the
Status of Forces Agreement that I would like to ask.

The problem of reaching an agreement, within the admin-
igtration on that. So that is the general direction I
would like to go. So the first area here on the Knowland
Substitute. You had meetings with the Republican Policy
Committee in the summer of 1953 ,and. . . Well, backing

‘up, 1in April, when you were testifying before the hear-

ings, and summer, of course, several things happened,
one of which %iS. the Judiciary Committee came out with
this revised YWhich clause version.

Oh yes.

And another thing that happened I gathered was that it
seemed like the support £or the Bricker Amendment was
beginning to build ur. 7w, was the idea for the
Enowland Sutszzizizts zurasly ﬂn idea to head off the
passage of thz mrra szrious Which clause version? Did

it come, one nunired percent out of the desire to pre-
vent this, or did President Eisenhower genuinely feel
that he wanted. . .in other words, where did the pressure

for the Knowland Substitute come from?

Well, as I recz2ll it, the Bricker forces were pretty
well convinced that the President would not go along
on their original draft and so that they maintained
that, in the original language, it would not get
through the Senate that the President had enough back-

“ding to defeat it. That was the main reason that an

attempt was made to modify the language--try and get
something that would be acceptable to the President.
Then there was also a feeling among the Republican
Senators that they must support John Bricker who was
personally very popular and had fought hdard for this
for several years. He carried some of the senators
with him on a personal basis. 8o I think the Knowland
Substitute was probably for a comblnatxon of reasons,
both of those reasons.

S0, in part, it was a need to keep the party together?
Yes.

For fear of spiitting the party'at this crucial time
when the President's program was before the Congress.
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B: Yes, it was really the first test of the President's
strength in foreign affairs as to whether or not he
could keep the party on an internationalist course,
which is the reason he ran in the first place, and it
was a test wlth the group in the Senate that was really

nationallstic or isolationist or whatever you want to
call ift. _

M: One of the things I found out that was very interesting--
and I. got this from Senator Bricker himself . . . Oh,
by the way, I'm sorry, I didn't answer the guestion
you asked earlier. I am working on a book on this,
hoping to have a. full manuscript just on the Bricker
Amendment and the controversy.

B: It needed to be done. I'm glad you're doing it.

M: Yes. Senator Bricker is giving me access to his papers
and several interviews and I have seen the materials
in the Elsenhower Library. The Department of Justice
papers have been made available to me now and many other
sources which T've collécted on this. One of the sur-
prises that came out and Senator Bricker-was the first
one to broach it to me--was that in those first six
‘months in 1953, Senator Taft the majority leader, was
working to delay the Bricker Amendment. Bricker was
surprised to find this out and I got from several other
sources that Taft, behind the scenés, though verbally
giving support, very mild support in public, was working
to delay the thing on the floor.

B: I think that's correct.

M: And I was wondering if you recall how that was worked
out. Was that worked out from the President and Taft or:
did you speak to Taft? :

B: No, I didn't. I think that Taft genuinely wanted to
support the President as much as possible and that he
did so0 in this case. When did he die?

M: Oh, he died In, I believe it was around June in 1953,
June or July in 1953, somewhere in there because Knowland
was taking over his duties as early as during May.

B: Well, I know that Knowland was asked somehow by the
administration to introduce the Substitute. He didn't
write 1t or compose it himself. Tt was composed over
in the administration, but I haven't gotten the connecting
link of how this was done. Do you recall if you asked

Knowland to do it or if this was done through the White
House 3taff? :
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B:

M:

M:

w B2 m =2

I think it was done by a group of Senators, Senator
Ferguson and Senator Knowland. They wanted to prevent
a split between Eisenhower and Bricker for partisan
reasons 1 suppose, largely, and they genuinely felt,

‘as did Senator Bricker, that something had to be done
along these lines restricting the treaty-making powers

of the President and they wanted to accomplish that
if they could without a split in the party. :

:._And Séhator Knowland,'probably feeling that he had to

represent the administration's point of view and
probably knowing that Senator Taft's. . . '

That's right, he was trying to get a compromise on
language. ' :

Because I think at the beginning, he probably was for

the Bricker Amendment the same as anybody else, the

other group, the people around Bricker, I don't think
there was probably any difference or distinction, so his
thinking had to change as he got into it too. : '

That's true. .

But, he didn't consult with Bricker on this. This is
the thing, because, not even a day before the Substitute
was introduced, Bricker didn't know anything about it.

I think that's correct.
And Bricker just took it as simply an administration

ploy, a diversionary tactic, I think is what he called
it. ' ' '

- Well, I think it was a group of Senators that really

originated that, rather than the administration.
Oh, that early? |

Yes,

Well, now that is a.new angle. (Laughter)

I, of course, can't prove it but I think T would have
known about it if it was an administration move.

You don't think it came out of Phleger's committee to
coordinate the response of the agencies to the Bricker
Amendment that was headed by Phleger at the White House?

I'm not sure that they got active that 500n.
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"M:

M:

M:

They got active early, as early asiMarch of that year
and they had about five or six meetings right on through.

-It's concelvable that <they consulted with Knowland

and Ferguson on that. If so, I didn't know about it
at the time.

Well, one of the things that the Bricker people say is
that the administration adopted a. conscious strategy of
delay. And, I'm not sure--I want to get your reaction
on this. I can see where they would think this, that
when you go infto these conferences--going into the
second area of my question--~your conferences in December
and January, there were so many -of them, I'm just

beginning to get them untangled, what was discussed at
each one. :

That's December of 19537
Right,'and'January.

Well, I think undoubtedly that everybody on the adminis-
tration side hoped that they could delay.-it and put it
over, at leasgt Ffor =-z<rn=r wear, that it would die out.

- =

I think the Z:z z7 or:ozz2lvy was the first.

SIS

[T

30, you would say there was a deliberate strategy of
delay? '

To prevent a vote, yes.

To prevent a vote. Well, this is the way they regarded

it

I think that's what Taft was trying to do.

Yes. There was a very colorful phrase that Chuck Webb,
who was Senator Bricker's assistant,had in one of his
private letters. In describing this later, he said that
they were "Negotiations in the Panmunjom. style."
(Laughter)

That had developed later I think. - I think undoubtedly
that 1t was true. 1 think Senator Bricker thought that
this would be probably the first important piece of
legislation, call it legislation, or the first important
product of the Congress in the Eisenhower administration.
As T remember it, it was Resolution Number One. Tt was
signed by a very large number of senators who were co-
sponsoring it. And I think, when Eisenhower was elected,
they just assumed that this would breeze through. It
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could easily have come to a quick vote in the Senate
and if it had, it probably would have passed. So that
I'm sure that there was an effort to delay it until
the full implications of it could be explained and
public opinion aroused and vubllic debate started, Bar

" Associations, and the law schools and things of that
gsort., :

M: I get from several sources here, that President Eisen-
hower's position was a little bit different even from
the Cabinet and certainly the State Department and
Justice Department personnel below you. T gather that
he really did want a compromise agreement. '

B; Oh yes. Tt was very much on his mind. He realized .
that if there was a split within the party right at
that particular time. . . As I recall it, the . . . yes,
I think I'm right in saying that a split at that time
in the party on foreign affairs would have been very
serious and that he'd like to get this behind him be-
cause his . . . 1if could be done proverly, so that he
could get on to things that were more on his mind.

M: Yes, right. Did you feel, that in a way sometimes he
was leaning on the Justice and State Departments to try
to come up with something that

B: Oh yes.
M: Really leaning, "We've got to get this . . .?
B: Time after time he told me to get it out of the way.

M: Well, one source said that Eisenhower came Iinto the
room at one of fthese meetings and one of the groups was
there and he said, "Now, you stay here until you come
up with something.”" (Laughiter) Or words to that effect.

B: He felt that it was holding up action on his legisla-
tive program and until he got it out of the way, he
wasn't going to get action on a number of other important
matters that he thought were, well, more important. He
thought, I think, that thils was a dispute over language
that could be settled without comoromising on principle
end that it was really a guarrel of lawyers over language.

M: And he always thought that right on through didn't he,
to a certaln extent, because I know that he would
never . . . If you convinced him that this would cut down
on executive authority--any given draft that was being
studied at the time--would cut down on executive authority,
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M:

I know he was determined he would not allow that to
happen. ' : : '

That's right.

So I suppose, in a way, Phleger and Ranken and some of the
others who were fighting this {the Bricker Amendmenﬁ] in
the bureaucracy below had thelr work cut out for them.

If they could convince the President that any given

phrase and so forth, cut down on executive authority,
then they had blocked the President from giving public
support. _ :

I think that's right, that's a gbod analysis.
Well finé, bhecause evéry draft that. was put up to him,

it seemed like there was always some way that fhis could
be interpreted which it would be.

~That's true. You ask a layman to read over the Fourteenth

Amendment and how can he possibly get all. the implications
that are invloved there unless he knows the Supreme Court
dectslons over the period=of one hundred ‘years that in-
terpret if an? hz wouliety zet TLhe slightest idea of some
of the dmplicz=77--3 : ng the language. And that was

at the heart I -L: Iri:iar Zdebate. You'd look at some

language and it sounded fine but then when you really dug
into it and applied the cases to it, you find out that it
did decrease executive authority to the point where you
almost went back to the old Confederation days, before the
Constitution was adopted, where we didn't have any power
in the Presidency to deal with foreign affairs. '

Well, at the end of January--this is one of the crucial,
January and February is the really grucial part of the
whole thing--Eisenhower appeared to getting very frustrated.
The inability of arriving at any kind of satisfactory
compromise and he was a little peeved at Bricker because
Bricker wouldn't accept something he thought he should be
able to accept. And so he began working on a nation-wide
television address and that thing went through eleven
drafts. I've got copiles of each of the eleven drafts.
(Laughter) You probably worked on it yourself. '

Could be. My assistants did, anyway.

Yes. And the President must have spent hours and hours
working on those drafts getting it right for a nation-wide
television address. And he was talking in private about
the Which clause, now mind you, if the Which elause vasses,
he was goling to give Dulles a leave of absence as the
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Secretary of 3tate so he can go and testify before the
state leglslatures to defeat the thing. And then,

‘right at the end, he's getting ready to do this, right
~at the end, the whole thing gets shelved and he doesn't

make the address at all and I don't have any hard facts
on why that television address was shelved. I have
some theories but, do you have any facts?

No.
(Laughtér)

My theory would be, my theory would be that he found ocut
he didn't need to give it, that it was going to be
defeated.

Well, that's one theory. Now, there's this theory. _
Knowland had been pressing IKE Lgresident Fisenhower ]

to come out with the position. I gather Xnowland wanted
to take any kind of position for his guidance, that
Eisenhower was just kind of close-mouthed on this. He

felt like he was walking in a mine field. And so Ike

wrote Knowland this famous letter, January 25, 1954:

"I am unalterably opposed to the Bricker Amendment as
reported by the Senate Judieclary Committee." Now, I
found out yesterday--in research at Columbia Univerglity--
Knowland said he was under the impression that he was
authorized to release that letter. However, I have also
come across correspondence from Eisenhower to you, saying,

"Did I authorize him? I don't recall saying anything

about it." I den't know if you recall that memo from
Eisenhower or not? : '

No.

I think it said, "Did I say anything stupid this morning
that might give him the impression that I authorized him
to release the letter?” I have hls memo to you but I
don't have any reply that you sent. So, whether the
letter was really authorized, Eisenhower wasn't under the
impression that it was authorized.

T don't recall that incident.

Well, he was surprised it was released,

Yes, yes.

And he said he wouldn't have used Bricker's name if he

had known it was going to be released. So, you don't
recall how that thing got out? Well, all right.
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No, I don't.

Then Knowland kept préssing him for a statement of

- support for one of these other new compromises, the

Leadership Compromise and the George Substitute. TI've
got very interesting correspondence, another letter
from Knowland. Two drafts of the letter went out to
Eisenhower. One of them said, "The Leadership agree~

ment 1s all right. I won't object to it." The other
draft was the exact opposite saying that "No draft

should be accepted without more prolonged study." Two
inconsistent letters from the President. And, what
happened was, he didn't sign either one of them. Now,
what I was wondering was, if you could shed any light
on how 1t was that Eisenhower backed off from making
any further stzftsment on this because he was being
pressed 1in all directions to make a further commitment
one way or the cther. :

@)
t

When?

_ Right after the beginning.of February,-right when the

George Amendment ecams Lo,

Well, I can ===z ~hy —h= Srasident didn't sign either one.
I don't actualiy remember the inecident but he was being
pressed by some of the senators, like Senator George, to
stay out of the fight all together.

Well, yes, that's what George wanted %o do, kind of
benevolent neutrality. I gather Knowland thought that
Eisenhower had agreed not to fight the George Amendment.

Well, I'm sure that there was great vressure on Eisenhower
not to fight the George Amendment. They took the tack
there that essentially it didn't involve the treaty

power and that 1t was a matter of the Senate to decide.
The President felt that he wasn't a part of the process
of submitting constitutional amendments. And the Pres-
ident obviously didn't want to get into an unnecessary
fight with Senator George. I would think that that was
the reason that he didn't make any unnecessary statements.
He tried to limit his personal participation in the thing
as much as possible and let Dulles, myself and others
carry the fight zgainst the amendment. o

B0 he didn't oblect to you fighting the Geofge Amendment ?

No, no. Senator George did. (Laughter) He had the
famous press conferernce. : '
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That "queer attorney general" statement. (Laughter)

Because I had no business mixing in the Senate con31dﬁ
erations of Constitutional Amendments.

I'd wondered if George said that, because he felt a

little bit--the word is, I don't want to use an emo-
tionally loaded word but it's the only one that comes
to mind--~double-crossed here. But, Xnowland says,
"there was a misunderstanding” in 1ater years., He
said in an interview that "there obviously was a mis-
understanding." T was under the impression that the
President would not come out against this and based

upon that, I got Senator Bricker to drop the Which

clause and accept the leadership thing. And I checked
the votes on 1t and he did. Bricker and the Bricker
forces abandoned the Which clause. Of course, he might
as well, 1t would have been beaten anyway.

Yes, yes. By that time.

By that time. So, now, I was put in this terribly
embarrasing situation of saying to Bricker, "If you

drop the Which clause, and go over to the George Amendment,
the administration won't oppose it. And then what
happeng?. Eisenhower says, or indicates in some way--
although he wouldn't sign that letter that would have
made it public--Eisenhower indicated to them, or they
thought he indicated to them that he was going to stay

out of it.

Well, that should account for Senator George's statement.

Yes. And then what happens: all the full lobbying
effort of the White House hits Capitol Hill to defeat
the George Amendment. '

Yes. Well, that sounds like a very logical explanation

to me because I never knew that Knowland did that. I
imagine Senateor George thought in effect, "What's going on
here? T'm getting two stories." .That isn't the way it
came out. I think the way it came out was that the
Journalists had devised it to have a good story but
sSenator George and I always got along very well.

Oh you mean that "queer attorney generél” statement?

Yes, yes. I think he probably meant it. I think your
analysis is probably right. He thought it was a queer
thing that Senator Xnowland would come to him and

purporting to represent the administration's viewpoint
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and then I'd come to him with the opposite, purporting
to represent the administration's viewpoint. T think
that's probably the correct analysis of why he made
that statement. : : '

But the whole White House lobbying effort did go into
1t at the last minute to defeat. . . And by the way,

-1t was successful. But it also was the reason why

Knowland said he decided, in view of the thing~-he
voted "No" on the George Amendment the first time it
came up--and that's why, where he made his famous
speech going back to the back of the Senate and sald,
"I'm voting as a Senator" and switched and voted in
favor of it because he felt he owed George something.

Well, throughout, there was a lot of Senatorial politics
involved, a matter of prestiege. To the Senators it

‘was almost as jmpertant as what the Constitutional

Amendment said. I felt that that was always a. factor.

They say that Senator Bricker was so well liked that a

1ot of senators kind of hated to vote agailnst him.

They felt they were sort of letting him down because he
had dramatized this issus” fzr over a period of months.

Well, T got 77 1 iz =ir mw

Eal

a7

B )]

Oh, ves.

Dy

He was so kind and courteous and courtly. (Laughter)

Really a fine man.

He certainly is. Well, that was the end of it for all
practical purposes but you didn't know it at the time.

It came up again a couple years'later.

It came up again in 1955 and 1956.

There never was any real steam in 1t after that.

No, there wasn't. But you did have conferences with some

ABA [ﬁmerican Bar Associatioﬁ] leaders. Lloyd Wright was
one who came by.

Frank Holman.

And Frank Holman. Do you recall anything in particular
in those later meetings as to why the negotiations broke
down. They thought they had worked out something with you
too at one time? ' :
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Yes. Well, there were a series of meetings but they
were language problems more than anything else because
the danger of anything really passing, in fact had
evaporated so T viewed negotiations in sort of an unreal
atmosphere. Edgar FEisenhower was with Frank Holman

and Lloyd Wright. The President was very respectful

of the American Bar Association, in fact that's one
thing he never did quite understand. They took the
position in Tavor of the Bricker Amendment. Others

were pointing out to him that legally and constitution-
ally it was a bad thing and he never could understand
how that happened but he instructed wme to make every
effort to try and come to an agreement with the American
Bar Assoclation group. Some how substitute for the
group a workable and satisfactory representative's

point of ¥iew. So, while we had many meetings, one
time we thought we had some language which really was
only a statement that, "No treaty in violation to the
Constitution would be wvalig." - :

The old Secticn One9

It would be unconstitutional, yes. Some of the

- American Bar Association group wanted to take that.. We

thought for a while that Senator Bricker did. And it _
was quite a reasonable possibility at that time. Section

- One of the amendment would have been sponsored by Senator

Bricker and passed. But. he finally came to the conclusion
that that was an emptyv gesture that didn't really accom-
plish anything. ' :

Well, you think it was because of the split within the
Bricker forces, the split within the ABA itself, whether
to accept a half lcaf or not, that killed that?

Yes, T do.

That was the impression that T . . . that if they had
been willing to accept a half loaf at that point, even
in 1955 or even maybe perhaps as late as 1956. They
could have gotten the Bricker Amendment .

Yes, that is true in my opinion.

After 1956, 1957 T doubt., By 1957 it was probably already
too late. '

1955 or 1956 around in there.

Because the prospective votes on the thing were still up

- to filfty-nine, sixty senators in favor.
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Yes.
Fven that late in thé game.

Yes.

‘Well, I wanted to ask you one question. One of the big

issues In the whole Bricker amendment thing was the

fight over the Status of Forces Treaty and of course,
the Justice Department was involved in the Status of
Forces controversy as it was coming up. Some things.
I've run across kind of indicate to me there was some

~difficulty within the administration trying to work out

a common administration positior on what the Status of
Forces positicn of the administration should be. Is
there anything that you recall that would shed light on-:
that? :

I doubt if that is so. The President took the position
very early, so stated in a Cabinet meeting, that he
favored this and he wanted everybody to favor it. It
was a very lmportant issue so far as he was concerned,
that it was an administrdtion measure and that he wanted
it vassed. =sni Z Zir'T reczll any difference in opinion
within the zimirZsT»=z7izn zbout 1¢. The President's
leadershlp ¢ " 37 was very forceful. There was no
organized opposltion in the Congress that was serious.
And for all those reasons it went through rather
smoothly. There was some extremist opposition to it.
There were some countries where, under their Judicial
system, they'd cut off their arms or their legs or
something of that sort. But it really was an extremist
position. DBut except for that type of ocpposition, it
really went very smoothly.

Yes, the Bricker Reservation was defeated handsomely in
May of 1953. {Actually, July, 1953| Even some of the
senators who later voted for the Bricker Amendment, voted
against the Reservation. But I came across some interest-
ing correspondence to the effect that, in the Defense
Department, some of the lawyers over there said, "Now
walt a minute, maybe we are giving away tco much because
unéer previous precedents, we d1d have complete criminal
Jurisdiction on troops and now under this agreement
which is coming up we are agreeing to turn over some
Jurisdiction that in the past we haven't had to do."

Yes. I think you're correct on that--but it was brushed
aside., It never gained any significant support even
within the administration. '
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That was within the Defense Department?

Yes.

The Defense Department didn't adopt the position

~officially?

~No, they 4id not. Quite'the contrary.

That c¢lears that up.

I don't think there would have been any opposition to
the Status of Forces Agreement Af it hadn't been that
the Bricker Arzndment controversy was very hot at that
time. I can sse that the Bricker forces might have
used that as another way of calling attention to the
Importance of fthe Bricker Amendment. Except for that,
it had smooth sailing for it and it was something that
the President had his heart set on. He was really
determined on that. He initiated that, whereas the
Bricker Amendment was already in the works and people
had all taken sides before he was ever 1naugurated S50
that's one of the things %rat made it so hard for him

to handle. 27 2zttt zomsthing that he had inltiated
as rart of rhi: zirmirsisztrzticon program. It was a fight
that everybci; ..:I taken sides on before he was in-

augurated.

One little thing that may not be as important as some
things we've discussed in here: 1In looking through the

Justice Department papers, I was very much interested

in seeing the correspondence that you had with Walter
White of the NAACP which he was writing the senators to
get their position he was passing along information to
you. It occurred to me when I was looking at that, that
that was a very effective way of moblllzlng some lobbles,
mobilizing a segment of public opinion, and really, when
you come down to it, that's what defeated the thing.

Well, that's the way I felt, that that was our best
chance of defeating it and we used the New York City Bar
Assoclation and groups of that kind.

I know Phleger, in the State Department, stayed almost in
constant touoh with the Committee to Defend the Consti-
tution. :

Yes.

And coordinated the efforts and so fofth.
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_That‘s'true..

I wondéred,-with Phléger and some administration people

working so closely with the group that was out to
defeat 1t, 1f Eisenhower knew that much about what was

going on down there, or if he was peeved because he was

trying to get an amendment, trying to get something
satisfactory, a satisfactory compromise. In this group -
however, no amendment at all, no compromise, whatsoever.
You were better off, without anything.

Yes of course we were. (Laughter) Well, T think you may
have a point there. I Xknow the President felt that a
weakness in having the State Department represent him

in this fight because first the Dulles speech he made in
Louisville during the campaign which led the Bricker
forces to think that he would support them throughout

and perhaps intransigent opposition to any Bricker Amend-
ment whereas he did want a compromise, get it out of the
way. That's why I think he g0t the Justice Department

more into the negotiations with the American Bar Associa-~
tion. SR

Well, in retrospect, would you say there was a difference
in say, Eisenhower's personal position and your personal
position? Now, of course, I know you loyally supported
him. There's complete evidence of that, but your own
personal outlook on the thing really was closer to no
amendment at all, than his was.

Yes, that 1s correct. We carried on the negotiations at
his directions trying to get a satisfactory compromise.

We would have been very happy to have it voted down and

get it over with.

But you did make g good faith effort to try to follow
the Preésident's directions in that respect.

Yes, we did. We explored every angle we could think of
to get a compromise.

And, as far as you know, FEisenhower did not perceive that
any of his own people were working against what he was
trying to do?

I think the answer to that probably is, that he felt we
were a better negotiating team working for a compromise
than the State Department was.

I see.
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We really tri=gd.

S0 that, to that extent you mlght say that he felt that

SAr there was any chance for a compromise at all, which

he wanted that we could do it for hlm

Yes, I know if Bricker walked 1nto any of these confer-
ences and if Phleger was there, he just would say this
isn't serious at all.

Yes.

: But, when he walked in with you-~you both have such

high regards for each other.

Bricker has spoken highly of you to me and this is really
interesting. He couldn't stand Dulles though '

I think he tbou“ht that Dulles had really let him down
because I think he thought that Louisville speech was a
speech in favor of the Bricker Amendment.

You mentioned the Louisvilrs speech, I suppose pages of
ink have besr writozn z2vout that Louisville Speech.
(Laughter). ~-=- =:u coms »izh:t down to it, wasn't
Dulies playinz 2:litics there? Wasn't it a campaign
address in 1952? How much did he really believe what he

- was saying about

Well, at that time, the central effort was to be on good
terms with everybody in the Republican party regardless

of who was going to be nominated. He didn't know whether
Taft was going to be nominated or Eisenhower was goling

to be nominated, and he was being asked by both sides to
write a platforr on foreign affairs which could be adopted
without a big floor fight. His whole effort at that

time was to smocth over the controversy within the party,
so that there wouldn't be a big row at the convention.

S0, he wrote a speech in which he spoke on both sides
of the issue. Knowingly he was speaking on both sides
of the issue, trying not to contradict himself, dbut
actually ending up doing it.

Yes, I think that's a good explanation of it, and it was

very fruitful. (Laughter) You have to give him credit
for it because he did avoid--not that one speech, but his
whecle effort--did aveid a big row at the 1953 convention
between the Eisenhower forces and the Taft forces over a
matter that was very important to Eisenhower. He would
have turned down the nomination if there had been an
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isolationist behind it. The Republican platform
because that's the only reason he would run for
president, was to prevent the party from taking an
isolationist point of view in foreign affairs. That's
the thing, I'm convinced, that caused him to run in

the first place and he was certainly very strong with
me at all points that if there was an isolationist

kind of platform but to count him out, even if you had
to say it after he was nominated, he would have turned
down the nomination. He thought that was his mission,
otherwise there was no point in his running for _ -
president, he had all the honors there were. So, Dulles.
deserves a lot of credit, T think, for presenting a
platform that could be accepted on all sides. And of -
course, all it did was further the fight until the
Bricker Amendment came along, and that was the first
real test. There were other tests too like Bohlen.

Oh yes.

The Bohlen Confirmation, things of that sort. The party
was split, there was no bllnklng that :

Well, as T recall the Bohlen thing, Taft went to the
wire with the president. We got that one through. He
said to Dulles afterwards, "Now, don't ever do that
again. (Laughter) o

I think that's Pight. I think that's right. Yes. When
pecple who lived through the Bricker Controversy reflect,
he was smart. And I think he would have accomplished
what the President wanted to accomplish and that was to

get 1t out of the wayv and get on with the 1eglslat1ve
program.

I don't think Tarft cculd have followed the same strategy
in 1954 as he did in 1953. In 1953, he was delaying it,
but in 1954, they had too many supporters. They would
have had to bring it tc the floor.

Is there anything that you feel that is not on the publie
record--because I have looked over the public records
from beginning to the end--anything that may not be in
the public record that you feel should be a part of the
history of the Bricker Amendment?

Well, that is really a good question, I think. The only
way I could answer 1t, I think, is to repeat more-or-less
what 1 said before, and that is the feeling on the part
of the President that the State Department, which
ordinarily would have carried the load completely out of
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there at this time, had to be supplemented in order

to have this point of view fully represented and
getting it up to a satisfactory compromise. I think
that probably some people on both sides have felt that
the President had a compromise which was weak because it
was weak from their standpoint. They knew what they
wanted. ‘I think the President was of the mind, .
there were two groups that were involved here. One was
the group that was isolationist and really wanted to

cut down the powers of the Presidency and the Federal
Government in this area. If they didn't do it, there
were golng to be more treaties that really were inter-
nationalist in their point of v1ew, that the Federal
Government would bring more and more subjects into
foreign affairs, economic, labor and social problems--
of course, ev ““*“ have'proved them to be right in that
respect because many of those issues that one hundred
years ago were considered completely domestic, have now
become international problems. The different agencies
in the United Nations have shown that. It was that very
sincere feeling that ran through the Republican Party and
the Bricker Amendment supporters that this was the time
to stop that sort of thire. It was a real isolationist
movement, & T:-o:z Tiiz one and 3 sincere one.

M:  Bricker makes = Interssilng distinction in his correspon-
dence, I suppose he did it publicly too, he said, he's
not an isolationist, he's a nationalist. There's =z
difference. (Laughter) :

B: Well, it's a distinction without a difference really,
when you come right down to it, but I think he did
belleve that. T think I remember him making that same
' point, but I think it was a political distinction because
“M"isolationist" is a little tainted but "nationalist" was
a good word but really, in essence, they came down to the
same thing, : '

Now that groun, the president wanted to oppose but he
felt that there was another group in back of the Bricker
Amendment which led him to think that there was a chance
for a compromise. That other group, largely speaking,
would be the pegple who were still mad at F.D.R. ranklin
Delano Roosevelt} because of what he did at Yalta or
things of that sort, and that some demonstration should

- be made to show that we were going to be nationalists,
we were going to stand up to Russia and we were going to
eliminate any traces of Communist philosophy in our own
government., The Bricker Amendment was used more-or-less
as a standard around which people who Telt that way could
rally. That group did not consciously want to take away
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from the President's leadership in foreign affairs.
That was the reason that the President, 1 think, felt

" that there was a possibility of compromise,.

: The second group, it was kind of an emotional reaction

agiainst the New Deal or something of that sort. ' The
Republicans were now in power. We were goling to show
them that we were different, and a philosophy of that

‘kind, but it was not a carefully thought out position.

When that group came to realize what the consequences
were, of passing the Bricker Amendment, they dropped
away from it. That, I think, is the real way to analyze
this thing and to understand the motives of the President
and to understand the degrease in support for the
Bricker Amenament

There?s one little memo that President Eisenhower wrote
to you in 1955 1 believe it was, saying--I don't know

if you recall this or not, I get this from the Eisenhower
papers--it says, "There is a reason I want the Bricker
Amendment that we haven't discussed before and that is,
I'm afraid that if 1 am succeeded by a politically weak
administration, they might succeed in putting through an
amendment that would be very, very bad indeed."

Yes. 1 do remember that and 1 know he did feel that way,
and T think he had a reason to feel that way. One of
the reasons he ccould easlily come to that conclusion was
that people didn't understand the significance of it.

It was perfectly cobvious that we should. adopt the Bricker
Amendment. It was a 1little late when you studied it but
you found out why you couldn't and still keep a strong
ffederal government in lorelgn affairs.

There is, even amcng moderates and liberals today, a new
slight shift of opinion beginning in the 1970's, the
standard liberal copinion on the Bricker Amendment was
just against it, defeated by isclationists and so forth.
But, I think the Vietnam War soured so many.

You're absolutely right.

That it's coloring perceptions on things all across the
board. And T wrote Fulbright just out of curiosity,

Fulbright was one of those who stood against the Bricker

Amendment, and I said, "What is you're position today?

Would you vote for the Bricker Amendment if it came up
again today?" And I went through 1t section by section.
"Well, section one is no longer needed, that's obscletfe.
Section two is obsclete. What about section three:

Congress has the right to regulate all executive agreements?
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How do you feel about that today?" - And he wrote back
.wilth a very interesting letter. A three page letter in
- which he said that today he'd favor it. :

That doesn't surprise me. T think almost any variation
of the George Amendment certainly and maybe even the
Bricker Amendment could have passed in Congress a
counle of years ago at the end of the Vietnam War. The

fact that Javits passed that legislation that very

drastically restricted the power of the President %o

~Introduce armed forces . into any other country, shows

that the George Amendment would have passed in a breeze
at the end of the Vietnam War. So these things go in
cycles. I think that the reason it would have passed a
couple of years ago was that the sentiment was that we
would have ancther Vietnam War unless the Congress
clibped the wings of the President.

Well, Fulbrignt said that he didn't impute any greater
wisdom to the Congress than to the President but that

on matters of importance, where we are at relations to
the rest of the world, he thought it was important that

both should arrive at 2n irdspendent positlon, that the
country was zz72> whzrn toth took a stand and that's why
he would havs Ti-craszs razul

= rzgulste, in some way, execubive
agreements.

Well,-I think, nmyself that's wrong. I think that unless

‘the Presldent has the power to make executive agreements

if there is a way of working with Congress, because
Congress has zot the power of the purse and so forth.

1 think that if the President doesn't have the power to
make executive agreements, initiate treaties, then we're
right back where we were under the old Articles of
Confederation. That's what they thought then, and it -
didn't work, and that's the reason we have the Constitu-
tion which gave these powers to the executive and T
think that Javits' legislation 1s a great mistake and if
it ever comes to a point where it will come to the front
and be really tested, why any strong executive is going
to disregard it. You cannot operate foreign affairs
within a committee rule, 1f you are going to have con-

gressional rules. We tried it in our early days and it
didn't work. :

Well, of course, some people fthink that what will
happen is that in a way this might even strengthen the
President more because when you have an emergency
situation and the President goes to Congress and says,
"I need authorization," he's almost bound to get it,

if the country is aroused sufficiently. With that kind
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of authorlzatlon why, you don £ need such resolutlons
like "Gulf of Tonkin", you have it built in there.

B: I don't happen to agree wilth that.

M: Of course, it hasn't been tested yet. The way they
fhink it will actually work out, it won't do what the
proponent's of the legislation think it will do. It
won't really serve as any kind of check because the
Presidesnt is the one that has to make these decisions.

B: I think that's right. One way or another he'll do 1it.
= In fact, if he has to defy it, he'll do 1t in the name
of emergency. He'll be supported. It is unrealistic.
50, when you say that the Bricker Amendment and the
George Amendrment might have been adopted, at the end of
the Vietnam VWar, I think they would still hesitate to
put them into the constitution but I think it was a
‘brave effort to demonstrate Congressional strength, as

you point out, it will not, when the showdown comes, be
very effectlve

M: Well, I don't want to take anymore of your time. Thank
you very much.

END OF INTERVIEW



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

